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November 3, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence (VC# 155510), Concord, NH, for the continuation of primary prevention activities
to reduce sexual violence, by increasing the price limitation by $297,618 from $705,512 to
$1,003,130 and by extending the completion date from January 31, 2021 to January 31, 2022,
effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on May 2, 2018, item #24
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on September 23, 2020, item
#23.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-3388 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY
SERVICES, RAPE PREVENT & EDUCATION (RPE)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for

Prog Svc
90004008 $142,183 $0 $142,183

2020 102-500731 Contracts for

Prog Svc
90004008 $275,415 $0 $275,415

2021 102-500731 Contracts for

Prog Svc
90004008 $156,036 $111,508 $267,544

2022 102-500731 Contracts for

Prog Svc
90004008 $156,110 $156,110

Subtotal $573,634 $267,618 $841,252

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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05-95-90-901010-8011 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF POLICY & PERFORMANCE,PREVENTIVE
HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90016006 $86,878 $0 $86,878

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90016006 $30,000 $0 $30,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for

PrOg Svc
90016006 $15,000 $12,500 $27,500

2022 102-500731 Contracts for

Prog Svc
90016006 $0 $17,500 $17,500

Subtotal $131,878 $30,000 $161,878

Total $705,512 $297,618 $1,003,130

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing primary prevention activities for the
reduction of sexual violence through a systematic plan addressing all levels of the socio-
ecologlcal spectrum.

The Contractor will continue providing educational sessions on the primary prevention of
sexual violence to school age children in the school setting of all ages. The Contractor also
provides professional development opportunities to teachers, law enforcement, and other
professionals to learn best practices with regards to sexual violence prevention strategies.

Approximately 39,000 individuals will be served from February 1, 2021 to January 31,
2022.

The Contractor will also continue working with community-based agencies and local
domestic violence crisis centers, statewide, on developing and evaluating best practices and
sexual violence prevention programming.

The Department will monitor contracted services through reporting of prevention
programming and evaluations ensuring a minimum of eighty percent (80%) of primary sexual
violence prevention programs are evaluated and analyzed.

As referenced in Exhibit 0-1 of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department
is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) year of the one (1) year and eight (8) months
available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals in New Hampshire
may not have the opportunity to take part in sexual violence prevention activities, which could
potentially result in the increased incidence of sexual violence, statewide.
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Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.136, FAIN #NUF2CE002459 and CFDA #93.991, FAIN
#NB010T009366.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lo v. Shibinette

Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Sexual Violence Prevention and Education

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Sexual Violence Prevention and Education Contract

This 2^ Amendment to the Sexual Violence Prevention and Education contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of
business at 4 South State Street Concord, NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 02, 2018, (Item #24), as amended on September 23, 2020 (Item #23), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3, Extension, the Contract may be amended and extended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

January 31, 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,003,130.

3. Add Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to read:

3. This contract is funded with 100% Federal funds from the:

3.1. Rape Prevention and Education Program Grant, as awarded on February 11, 2020 by
the US Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.136, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) # NUF2CE00245.

3.2. Preventative Health and Human Services Block Grant, as awarded on December 12,
2016 by the US Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease.Control
and Prevention Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.758, Federal
Award Identification Number (FAIN)#NB010T009098.

3.3. Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant, as awarded on September 16, 2020
by the US Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.991, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN)# NB010T009366.

4. Modify Exhibit B-3, Amendment #1 Budget Sheet by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-3,
Amendment #2 Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Add Exhibit B-4, Amendment #2, Budget Sheet, which Is attached hereto and Incorporated by
reference herein.

New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence

RFP-2018-DPHS-06-SEXUA-01-A02

Amendment #2

Page 1 of 3

Contractor Initials

— OS

m

Date
11/3/2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Sexual Violence Prevention and Education

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

OouSkgn*d by:

^ovyiv11/3/2020

Date

C«3fl0eFBeCAS4A0..

Name: Lisa m. Morris

Title: . . .
Director, Division of Public Health Srvcs.

11/3/2020

Date

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence

~~.DocuSlf)n«d by:

H,

-EC2EFE023DF3413...

Name* ^cnoi lett
Title: Executive Director

New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence

RFP-2018-DPHS-06-SEXUA-01 -AOa

Amendment #2

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Sexual Violence Prevention and Education

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

—OeevSlontd by.

11/4/2020
-05CA0202E33C4AE..

Date Name:Catherine Pinos

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

New Hampshire Coalition Against Amendment #2
Domestic and Sexual Violence

RFP-2018-DPHS-06-SEXUA-01-A02 Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit B-3, Amendment #2 Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Budget for Sexual Violence Prevention and Education

Budget Period: SFY2021 12 months (7/1/2020 - 6/30/2021)

Total Program Cost Contractor Share 1 Match Funded by DHHS contract share
Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Total

Line Item Incremental Fixed Incremental Fixed ncremental Fixed

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 44,020.00 $ S 44,020.00 $ $ $ $ 44,020.00 $ $ 44,020.00
2. Employee Benefits $ 12,487.00 $ S 12,487.00 $ $ $ $ 12,487.00 $ $ 12,487.00
3. Consultants $ - $ $ - $ $ $ $ . $ $ .

4. Equipment: $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Rental $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Repair and Maintenance $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Purchase/Depredation $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

5. Supplies: $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Educational $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Lab $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

PhamiacY $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ —

Medical $ - $ $ -

$ $ $ $ - $ $ -

Office $ 1.477.00 $ s 1,477.00 $ $ $ $ 1,477.00 $ $ 1.477.00
6. Travel $ - $ $ - $ $ $ $ . $ $ .

7. Occupancy $ 6.691.00 $ $  6,691.00 $ $ $ $ 6,691.00 $ $ 6.691.00
8. Current Expenses $ -  • $ $ $ $ $ $ -

$ $
Telephone $ 1,007.00 $ $ 1,007.00 $ $ $ $ 1,007.00 $ $  1,007.00
Postage $ - $ $ - $ $ $ $ - $ S -

Subscriptions $ - $ $ - $ $ $ $ - $ $ .

Audit and Legal $ 775.00 $ S 775.00 $ $ $ $ 775.00 $ $ 775.00

Insurance $ 387.00 $ $ 387.00 $ $ $ $ 387.00 $ $ 387.00

Board Expenses $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
9. Software $ - $ $ - $ $ $ $ . $ $ .

10. Marketing/Communications $ 707.00 $ $ 707.00 $ $ $ $ 707.00 $ $ 707.00

11. Staff Educ^ation and Training $ • $  • - $ - $ $ $ $ - $ $
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 227.251.00 $ $ 227,251.00 $ $ $ $ 227,251.00 $ $ 227,251.00
13. Other (spedfic details mandatory): $ .  - $ $ - $ $ $ $ - $ $ .

Memberships $ 242.00 $ $ 242.00 $ $ $ $ 242.00 $ $ 242.00

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ .

$ - $ $ - $ $ $ $ -
$ $ -

TOTAL $ 295,044.00 $ $ 295,044.00
-

i $ i 295,044.00 i $ 295,044.00
Indirect As A Percent of Direct

New Hampshire Coalition Against

Domestic and Sexual Violence

RFP-20184DPHS-06-SEXUA-01-A02

Exhibit B-3. Amendment #2 Budget Sheet
Page 1 of l

0.0%

Contractor Initials

Date
11/3/2020



Exhibit 8-4, Amendment #2 Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: NH Coaiition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Budget for: Sexual VIolenco Prevention and Education

Budget Period: SFY2022 7 months (7/1/2021 - 1/31/2022)

.1 . v Vl.liM-.'llXjr,. p4Ttrc^f. '•

.: .i i i -
« %

[1. Total Salary/Waqes $  27,678.00 $ r'S " 27,678.00' $ $ $' $  27,678.00 $ $ 27,678.00

2. Employee Benefits $  7,688.00 $ $  7,688.00 $ $ $ $  7,688.00 $ .$ 7,688.00

3. Consultants $ $ $
-

$ $ $ $ $ $

4. Equipment: $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Rental $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Repair and Maintenance $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Purchase/Depreciation $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

5. Supplies: $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Educational $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Lab $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Pharmacy $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Medical $ - $ $ - $ $ $ $ - $ $ -

Office $ 862.00 $ $ 862.00 $ $ $ S 862.00 $ $ 862.00

6. Travel $ - $ $ - $ $ $ $ - $ $ -

7. Occupancy $ 4,553.00 $ $ 4,553.00 $ $ $ $ 4,553.00 $ $ 4,553.00

8. Current Expenses $ - $ $ • $ $ $ $ - $ $ -

Telephone $ 587.00 $ $ 587.00 $ $ $ s 587.00 $ s 587.00

Postage 1 $ - 1 $ 1$ - 1 $ $ $ $ $ S
Subscriptions $ - $ $ - $ $ $ $ $ $ -

Audit and Legal $ 775.00 $ S 775.00 $ $ $ $ 775,00 $ $ 775.00

Insurance $ 226.00 $ $ 226.00 $ $ $ $ 226.00 $ $ 226.00

Board Expenses 1$ - 1 $ 1$ - 1 $ $ $ 1 $ • 1 $ S
9. Software $ • $ $ - $ $ $ $ - $ 11. -  1
10. Marketing/Communications $ 412.00 $ $ 412.00 $ $ $ $ 412.00 $ I $ 412.00 1
11. Staff Education and Training $ $ $ - $ $ $ 1  $ - 1 $ $ -

12. Subcontracts/Agreements 1 $ 130,688.00 i $ $ 130,688.00 $ $ $ $ 130,688.00 $ $ 130,688.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ $ - $ $ $ $ - $ $ -

Memberships S 141.00 $ $ 141.00 $ $ $ $ 141.00 $ $ 141.00

ts $ 1$ $ $ $ $ $ 1$ - 1

n - $ $ - $ $ $ $ $ Li. -  1
TOTAL [ $ 173.610;op $  " • $ 173,610.00 $ $ $ [E 173,610.00 $ r$ 173,610.00 1

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence

RFP-2018-OPHS-06-SEXUA-01-A02

Exhibit B-3. Amendment $2 Budget Sheet
Page l of l

0.0%

Contractor Initials
LMS

Date 11/6/2020
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTJFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE

COALITION AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on April 30, 1981. 1 further certify tliat all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63838

Certificate Number: 0004881496

la;

•©

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Lindsay Nadeau ,, hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Chairperson/Officer of the NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on December 10, 2019 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That _Lyn M. Schollett, Executive Director
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

(may list more than one person)

is duly authorized on behalf of the NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence to enter into contracts or
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to
execute any and all documents, agreertients and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote!

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority, I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position{s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation, To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: (3 C-'+'O
erof Elected Off

Name: %indsay Nadeau
Title: Chairperson, Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 0A7E(lilM/D0ftTYY)

04/28/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED

,  REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certincato holder la an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(Iea) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such Gndorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadovrbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilftxd NH 03247-7425

Eleanor Splnazzola

293-2791 ,1003) 293-7188

Eleanorspinazzota(3esinsurance.net

IN8URER(S) AFFOROINO COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A: Great American Insurance Group GAIG

INSURED

NH Coalilion Against Domestic and Sexual Violence. DBA; NHCADSV

PC Box 353

Concord NH 03302

INSURER B; Liberty Mutual Agency Corporation

INSURER C ; '

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY .THATTHE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOYE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR 01 HER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONOlTIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. UMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
ina? WYO POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EPF
IMM/DO/YYYYl

POLICVCXP
IMM/DO/YYYYl UMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL GENER

E

ALLlABIUTY

OCCUR

MACS4e423e:19 05/15/2020 05/15/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE J 1,000.000

ClAIUSiMAC X OAMAGU TO REWTED
PREMISES lEe ocxurenee)

, 100,000

MED EXP (Anv one peraoni 5 5,000

PERSONAL 4 AOV INJURY , 1,000,000

GErrLAGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER:

POUCY [ 1 1 1 LOG
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE , 2,000.000

PROOUCTS • COMP/OPAGO J 2,000.000

»

A

AU1

X

OMOBiLE LIABIUTY

MAC5464 236-19 05/15/2020 05/15/2021

COMQINEO SINOlE UMIT
(Fa aeddenil

t 100,000

ANYALITO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED '

AUTOS ONLY X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BOOILY INJURY (Per perion) $

BOOILY INJURY (Per acddwiQ S

property OaUaGE
/Par aceiOMi i

S

A

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB X

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE UMB8234007-12 05/15/2020 05/15/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE , 1,000,000 '

AGGREGATE , 1,000,000

DED X ReTENTION:j 10.000

B

TVORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABIUTY y , ̂
ANYPROPRIETORff*RTN£R/ExeCUTTVE rTTl
OFFICERlMEMBER EXCLUDED? H
(Wtndaiory In NH] '—
iryM, deiotM une«r
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

NIA \M:5-31S-604577-010 05/15/2020 05/15/2021

SX PER OTH-
^ statutf ER

EL EACH ACCIDENT s 500,000

EL. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE , 500,000

E L WSEASe - POUCY UMIT , 500,000

..

DESCRIPTION OF OPEAATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddUlontl Ramartia SeltMul*. may M ittMhad If mor« tpac* H r»quM|

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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coaZ/v
o

C_3

■V

cP

NHCADSV Vision and Mission

Vision
All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

Mission
The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence creates safe and just
communities through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual
violence, domestic violence and stalking.

Note: The language below will be used in grant applications and other documents to provide
further clarification of what the Coalition does.
The statement above is the actual Mission Statement.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 13 independent community-based
member programs, a Board of Directors and a central staff working together to;

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their responses to

sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking;
•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

Approved April 2011

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic asexual Violence • PO Box 353 • Concord, NH 03302 • 603.224.8893
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION AGAINST

DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30. 2019 and 2018

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS

June 30,2019
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ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

46 N. STATE STREET

CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE03301

MEMBER TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF FAX U (603) 226-3532 MEMBER OF THE PRIVATE

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition

Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic
and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2019 and the related statement of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material niisstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmenl Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position ofNew Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence as of June 30, 2019 and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's 2018
financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in
our report dated October 19, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial staterrients. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 4, 2019,
on our consideration of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

fey

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 4, 2019

-O.
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iNov Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2019 With Comparative Totals for June 30. 2018

Sec Independent Auditors' Report

Net Assets Net A.sset.s

Without Donor . With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions 2019 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $  364.045 $ 46.760 • $ 410.805 $ 557.853

Grants Receivable 1.881,645 - 1,881,645 1.527,457
Prepaid Expenses 19,916 - 19.916 20.421

Total Current Assets 2.265.606 46.760 2.312.366 2.105.731

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land
- - - 52.143

Building
- - - 267.592

Equipment 14,654 - 14.654 114,179
Building and Leasehold Improvements 27.719 - 27.719 53,455

42.373 - 42.373 487.369

Less Accumulated Depreciation (9,494) - (9,494) (237,534)

Total Property and Equipment, Net 32.879 - . 32.879 249.835

LONG-TERM ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents Designated
for Long-Term Investment 350.655 - 350.655 .

Security Deposit 6.213 - 6,213 6,213
Total Long-Tcrm Assets 356.868 - 356,868 6,213

Total Assets $  2.655.353 $ 46,760 $■ 2,702.113 $ 2.361.779

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Portion of Long-Tenn Debt $  ■ $ - S - $ 6.354
Accounts Payable 1.587,493 - 1,587.493 1.230.380
Accrued Expenses 103,664 - 103,664 105,157
Federal Taxes Payable 1.428 1.428 .

Total Current Liabilities 1.692.585 - 1.692.585 1.341.891

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-Tenn Debt, Net of Current Portion
- - - 31.508

NET ASSETS

Without Donor Rcstirciion 962.768 . 962.768 949.400
With Donor Restriction

- 46.760 46.760 38.980
Total Net Assets 962,768 46,760 1,009,528 988,380

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $  2.655.353 $ 46,760 $ 2,702.113 $ 2.361,779

Notes to Financial Statements
-3-
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets ^
Vear Ended June 30, 2019, With Comparitive Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2018

See Independent Auditors' Report

Net Assets Net Assets

Without Donor With Donor

Restriction Restriction 2019 2018

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Grant Revenue $ 7,493.193 S  87.220 $ 7,580,413 $ 6,388,663

Contributions 204,789 - 204.789 233.980

Donated Services 106.680 - 106.680 129.417

Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment 19.018 - 19.018 .

Miscellaneous Income 36.182 . 36.182 23.338

Total Support and Revenue 7.859,862 87.220 7.947.082 6.775.398

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Net Assets Released from Donor Imposed Restriction 79,440 (79,440) - -

EXPENSES

Program Services 7.783.527 - 7,783.527 6.653.578

Management and General 1 12.718 • 112.718 1 12,249

Fundraising 29.689 - 29.689 20.707 •

Total expenses 7.925,934 - 7.925.934 6,786.534

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS 13,368 7,780 21,148 (11.136)

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF VEAR 949.400 38,980 988.380 999.516

NET ASSETS AT END OF VEAR $  962.768 $  46,760 $ 1,009,528 $  988.380

Notes to [•inancial Statements

-4-
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30,2019

With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30,2018

See Independent Auditors' Report

Program Management & Total Total

Services General Fundraising 2019 2018

Salaries S  971.527 $  66,056 $  17,622 $  1,055,205 $ 1,114,419

Payroll taxes 78,304 5,324 1,420 85,048 89,530

Health and Dental Insurance 91,266 6,205 1,655 99,126 86,950

Other Employee Benefits 31,571 2,147 572 34.290 37,090

Professional Services 126,638 8.610 2,297 137,545 179,140

Contract/Grant Services 5,749,544 • - 5,749,544 4,707,965

Survivor Grants 253,628 - - 253,628 109,630

Memberships 3,985 271 72 4,328 3,559

Publications 1.186 81 21 . 1,288 1,1 16

Advertising/Public Awareness 3,404 231 62 3.697 401

Copying 3,132 213 57 3,402 4,642

Office Supplies 38,424 2,612 697 41,733 48,452

Postage 5,389 366 98 5,853 4,670

Printing 7,264 494 132 7,890 11,573

Equipment & Moving 3,150 214 57 3.421 12,952

Maintenance &• Repair 42,204 2,870 766 45,840 34,334

Rent Expense 76,211 5,182 1,382 82,775 23,599
Interest 474 32 9 515 2,054
Parking 6,589 448 120 7,157 4,094

Insurance 7,547 513 137 8,197 12,104

PMC Partial Reimbursement 1,335 91 24 1,450 1,300

Staff Development 23,713 1,612 430 25,755 ' 17,399

Travel 47,478 3,228 861 51,567 55,791

Telephone 46,846 3,185 850 50,881 37,607

Utilities 346 24 6 376 8,950

Miscellaneous - - - - 1,410
AVAP Miscellaneous Expense 59,891 - - 59,891 63,181
AVAP Member Training/Education 4,621 - - 4,621 6,376

Direct Training 48,589 - - 48.589 47,172

Community Education 30,441 - - 30,441 35,878

Depreciation Expense 6,982 475 127 7,584 10,773

Accounting Fees 11,848 806 215 12,869 12,423

Federal Taxes - 1.428 - 1,428 -

Total Expenses S  7,783,527 S  112.718 S  29,689 S  7,925,934 S 6,786,534

Notes to Financial Statements

-5-
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

See Independent Auditors' Report

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets

Adjustments to Reconcile increase in Net Assets to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation

Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:

Grants Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Security Deposit

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Federal Taxes Payable

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net Proceeds on Sale of Property and Equipment

Acquisition of Property and Equipment

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Long-Term Debt

NET CASH USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITES

$  21,148 $ (1 1,136)

7,584

(19,018)

(354.188)

505

357,1 13

(1,493)

1,428

13,079

228,390

228,390

(37,862)

(37,862)

10,773

(210,824)

(8,905)

(6,213)

1 15,091

20,654

(90,560)

(39,275)

(39,275)

(6,045)

(6,045)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 203,607 (135,880)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT END OF YEAR

557,853 693,73:

$ 761,460 S. 557,853

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest

Donated Services

515 $ 2,054

$  106,680 $ 129,417

Notes to Financial Statements

-6-
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i^ew nampsnire coalition Against uomestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

The Coalition Is a private, non-profit, tax-exempt organization committed to ending domestic and sexual
violence. The Coalition serves as a coordinating organization for its 13 member agency crisis centers that
in turn provide services to survivors of sexual assault, domestic violence, human trafficking, and stalking.
Twelve of the Coalition's member agencies are autonomous, private, non-profit organizations with their
own mission, structure, and board of directors; one is a university-based program. The Coalition receives
97% of its funding from federal and state agencies and less than 1% from private fundraising.

The Vision of the Coalition is:

All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

The Mission of the Coalition is:

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence creates safe and just communities
through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual violence, domestic violence
and stalking.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 13 independent community-based member
programs, a board of directors and a central staff working together to:

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their responses to sexual

violence, domestic violence and stalking;
-  • Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

To elaborate on the above mission and vision statements, the Coalition supports member agency staff with
specialized training, resources and technical assistance; convenes member agency staff to facilitate shared
learning and peer support; and collects and disseminates best practices and current information. The
Coalition supports the development of new services and serves as a statewide clearinghouse and
coordinating organization related to victim services. It administers state and federal contracts that provide
funding for its member programs.

Coalition staff provide education and training to court and law enforcement officials and attorneys, and '
collaborate with legal assistance organizations that provide lawyers for survivors and their families.
Coalition staff work to promote cross-system collaboration with child protective services and child
advocacy centers to assure safety for children exposed to or who have experienced domestic and sexual
violence, and for their parents. Coalition staff participate on numerous statewide boards and commissions
to advocate for effective responses to victims.

The Coalition's Public Affairs staff work closely with other advocacy groups, legislators and survivors to
draft legislation, organize testimony, and advocate for policy changes throughout the legislative
session. The Coalition either takes an active role in or tracks close to 150 bills each legislative
session. These bills address a wide range of issues including domestic and sexual violence; stalking; family
law; divorce and child custody/visitation/support; reproductive rights; law enforcement and courts; privacy
and personal information; healthcare; and economic justice.

Coalition staff also provide resources and sources for responsible news media and reporting. Coalition staff
create and distribute statewide communications materials to raise awareness about sexual assault, domestic
violence, prevention and services available to victims.

-7-
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i>iew nampsnire coalition Against uomestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Nature of Activities (Continued)

The Coalition plays a key leadership role in efforts to prevent domestic and sexual violence throughout
New Hampshire. Coalition staff collaborate with state and local entities to support policies and practices to
advance effective prevention education. Coalition staff are proactive in educating the public about the
causes and effects of domestic and sexual violence and stalking and as well as services available across the
state. The Coalition has sponsored research on the prevalence of violence in New Hampshire.

The Coalition also manages several specific programs to assist its member crisis centers and the public.
The following are three distinct programs that directly affect survivors of domestic violence, sexual
violence and stalking:

AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP)

The AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP) founded in 1994 is a multi-agency collaboration
housed by the Coalition that ensures that direct services are available to victims of domestic and sexual
violence and stalking throughout New Hampshire. AVAP is part of AmeriCorps, a national service
program that offers opportunities to Americans who are interested in making a substantial commitment to
serve their country through national service.

Members of the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program are placed throughout New Hampshire at member
agencies, police departments, prosecutor offices, the New Hampshire Department of Corrections, and child
advocacy centers to offer support and information to victims of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking. Currently, AVAP members are focusing their advocacy efforts on providing financial literacy and
housing services to survivors of domestic violence, sexual assault, and stalking. AVAP members are
trained in the AllState Foundation's Moving Ahead through Financial Management curriculum which they
use in one-on-one sessions and in financial literacy workshops focused on an array of topics from basic
budgeting to checking a credit report. Members also provide information and facilitate referrals to local
financial and housing services.

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Program

A Se.xual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) is a Registered Nurse who has been specially trained to provide
comprehensive care to sexual assault survivors, who demonstrates competency in conducting
medical/forensic examinations and who has the ability to be a witness in a se.xual assault prosecution.
Coalition staff are responsible for training and working with registered SANEs and medical professionals
across the state to ensure that sexual assault victims receive consistent and professional care during forensic
exams.

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist Program

Research shows a high correlation (40-60%) between the perpetration of domestic violence and the
perpetration of child abuse and neglect in the same family. The Family Violence Prevention Specialist
Program was built on the principle that abused and neglected children are best served when they can remain
in a safe household with a non-violent parent.
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i>iew tiampsnire coaiinon Against uomestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 i

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontinued)

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist program began in 1998 as a coordinated effort between the
Coalition and the Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF). Family Violence Prevention
Specialists (FVPSs) are employed by local member agencies of the Coalition, and are co-located at local
DCYF District Offices. The FVPSs are a source of assistance and training to child protective service
workers while providing advocacy services to victims of domestic violence involved with DCYF. This
program results in more effective assistance to victims through the development of interventions that
recognize the adult victim's need for support and advocacy in order to improve safety outcomes for
children.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to not-for-profits. The Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles
for not-for-profits. The more significant of the FASB's generally accepted accounting principles applicable
to the Coalition, and the Coalition's conformity with such principles, are described below. These
disclosures are an integral part of the Coalition's financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The Coalition reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of
net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions - These net assets generally result from revenues generated by
receiving contributions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and receiving interest from
operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-related services raising
contributions, and performing administrative functions.

Net assets with donor restrictions - These net assets result from gifts of cash and other assets that are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, either temporarily or
permanently, until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated time restriction ends or the
purpose of the restriction is accomplished, the net assets are restricted.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and
accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables and other liabilities.

Grants Receivable and Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Coalition that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets without
donor restriction if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All
other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restriction. When a
restriction expires, net assets with donor restriction are reclassified to net assets without donor restriction.

-9-



DocuSign Envelope ID; 514B188C-8954-485A-9E4D-A91D4BD9FF54
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Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontinuedl

Contributed Services

During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the value of contributed services relating to printing,
community education, direct training and professional fees were $106,680 and $129,417, respectively.
Contributions received are recorded as with or without donor restricted support depending on the existence
or nature of any donor restrictions.

In addition, many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Coalition;
these amounts have not been recognized in the accompanying statement of activities because the criterion
for recognition of such volunteer effort is that services must be specialized skills, which would be
purchased if not donated.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences

Employees of the Coalition are entitled to paid vacation depending on job classification, length of services,
and other factors. The statement of financial position reflects accrued vacation earned, but unpaid as of
June 30, 2019 and 2018 in the amounts of $63,255 and $63,017, respectively.

Allocation of Expenses

The Coalition'allocates expenses among program services, management and general, and fundraising based
on direct costs and other factors, including space utilization and time.

Property and Equipment

It is the Coalition's policy to capitalize property and equipment over $2,500 and all expenditures for
repairs, maintenance, renewals and betterments that prolong the useful lives of assets. Lesser, amounts are
expensed. Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations of property and equipment
are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as contributions
without donor restriction unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets
donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire
property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how
long those donated assets must be maintained, the Coalition reports expiration of donor restrictions when
the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The Coalition reclassifies net
assets with donor restriction to net assets without donor restriction at that time. Property and equipment are
depreciated using the straight-line method. The ranges of useful lives are as follows:

Building and Improvements 39 Years
Equipment 3-7 Years

Depreciation expense recorded by the Coalition for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $7,735 and
$10,773, respectively.

-ID-
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Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued!

Income taxes

The Coalition has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal income tax
under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Coalition is further classified as an
organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3) of the Code. The most significant tax
positions of the Coalition are its assertion that it is exempt from income taxes and its determination of
whether any amounts are subject to unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Coalition follows guidance of
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, related to uncertain income
taxes, which prescribes a threshold of more likely than not for recognition of tax positions taken or expected
to be taken in a tax return.

All significant tax positions have been considered by management. Based on the results of this evaluation it
was determined that the Coalition has, unrelated business income in accordance with The Tax Cuts and Jobs

Act (TCJA) provisions specific to tax-exempt organizations beginning in 2018. The TCJA provides that
unrelated business income includes expenses paid or incurred for qualified transportation fringe benefits
such as the parking benefits provided to employees of the Coalition. UBIT related to parking benefits was
$ 1,428 for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Coalition considers all highly liquid investments (short-
term investments such as certificates of deposits and money market accounts) with an initial maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. There were no cash equivalents as of June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Segregation of Accounts

Under Title 1, New Hampshire, The Slate and Its Government, Chapter 15 Lobbyist Section 15:1-a, the
Coalition is required to physically and financially separate state funds from any non-state funds that may be
used for the purposes of lobbying or attempting to influence legislation, participate in political activity, or
contribute funds to any entity engaged in these activities. The Coalition has established and maintains a
separate bank account for this purpose. The account balances were $2,061 and $4,634 at June 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively..

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Coalition maintains cash balances in several accounts at local banks. These accounts are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At various times throughout the year, the Coalition
may have cash balances at the financial institution that exceeds the insured amount. Management does not
believe this concentration of cash results in a high level of risk for the Coalition. At June 30, 2019 and 2018
the Coalition had uninsured cash balances of $0 and $ 174,712, respectively.

Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 4, 2019, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance to require disclosure.
It has been determined that no other subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued^

Comparative Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not by
net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Coalition's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, from which the
summarized information was derived.

\

Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, grants receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable and
accrued expenses are stated at carrying cost at June 30, 2019 and 2018, which approximates fair value due
to the relatively short maturit)' of these instruments.

Reclassifications

Certain financial statement and note information from the prior year financial statements has been
reclassified to conform with current year presentation format..

New Accounting Pronouncement

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Coalition adopted the requirements of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board's Accounting Standards Update No. 2016- 14—Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958):
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (ASU 2016- 14). This Update addresses the
complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity and
availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the t)'pe of information provided about expenses and
investment return between not-for-profit entities. A key change required by ASU 2016-14 is the net asset
classes used in these financial statements. Amounts previously reported as unrestricted net assets are now
reported as net assets without donor restrictions and amounts previously reported as temporarily restricted
net assets and permanently restricted net assets are now reported as net assets with donor restrictions.

The accompanying information from the 2018 financial statements has been restated to conform to the 2019
presentation and disclosure requirements of ASU 2016-14.

NOTE B - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of funds received by the Coalition, restricted as to use or time. The
restrictions are considered to expire when payments are made. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018 respectively,
the net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purpose:

2019 2018

NH Charitable Foundation $ 20,310 $ 24,282
Endowment for Health 5,500
.Allstate 20,950 14,31 1
Verizon Respect Week ^ 387
Total

-12-
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Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

NOTE C - LONG-TERM NOTES

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, long-term debt consists of the following:

2019 2018

Mortgage Note, Payable to Merrimack
County Savings Bank, Interest at 4.99%,
with Monthly Payments of $675 including
Principal and Interest. Paid in full August 2019. $ • $ 37,862
Less Current Portion ; 6.354
Total Long Term Debt £ £ 31.508

NOTE D - LINE OF CREDIT

The Coalition has a one-year $150,000 revolving line of credit agreement with Merrimack County Savings
Bank. The credit line matures on May 20, 2020 and automatically renews annually. Interest Is stated at the
Wall Street Journal prime rate plus .5%, which resulted in interest rates of 5.75% and 5.50% as of June 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively. The line of credit is secured by all business assets. There were no borrowings
against the line as of June 30, 2019 and 2018.

NOTE E - DESCRIPTION OF LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Coalition presently leases office equipment under short-term operating lease agreements.

The Coalition entered a ten-year lease agreement for office space and parking spaces on March 1, 2018,
expiring in 2028. Annual rent is $74,556 with 4% annual escalations each year on the anniversary of the
lease term. Annual parking is $7,800 with no more than 2% annual increases. The future minimum lease
payments on this agreement as of June 30 are:

2020 $ 86,372
2021 89,515

2022 92,784

2023 96,183
2024 99,719

Thereafter 397.755

Total £ 862.328

Rent expense related to the lease was $82,777 and $23,599 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
respectively. Parking expense of $7,800 and $2,600 is included in travel expense for the years ended June
30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE F - PENSION PLAN

The Coalition has a 403(b) savings plan for the benefit of its employees. The plan covers substantially ail
employees after one year of service. During their budgeting process, the Board of Directors determines the
amount to be contributed annually. Employer contributions for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
totaled $22,960 and $21,572, respectively.
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NOTE G - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Coalition is required to
disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. Fair values of assets measured on a

recurring basis at June 30 were as follows:

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

2019 Fair Value (Level 2)

Grants Receivable $1.881.645 $1.881.645

2018

Grants Receivable $1.527.457 $1.527.457

The fair value of grants receivable are estimated at the present value of expected future cash flows.

NOTE H - BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Coalition has net assets designated for various future needs. These funds are comprised of the
following as of June 30:

2019 2018

Fund for Grace $ 72,386 $ 85,193

Operating Reserve 148.665 148.665
S 22L05I $ 233.858

NOTE 1 - LIOUIDITV & AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Coalition has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,
liabilities and other obligations come due. The Coalition's primary source of support is grants. That support
is held for the purpose of supporting the Coalition's budget. The Coalition had the following financial
assets that could be readily made available within one year to fund expenses without limitations:

2019 2018

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 410,805 $ 57,853
Grants Receivable, net of

Grants Payable 302,985 306,951

Less Amounts:

With Donor Imposed Restriction (46.760) (38.980)
■$ 667.030

-14-
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KOWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

MEMBER

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

46 N, STATE STREET

CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE03301

TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
FAX #(603) 226-3532 MEMBER OF THE PRIVATE

COMPANIES PR/\CTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDlTOR^S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition

Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30. 2019, and the related statements Of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated October 4, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow managegient
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
Internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

-15-
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 4, 2019

-16-
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KOWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PlIBUC ACCOUNTANTS

46 N. STATE STREET

CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE03301

MEMBER TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF FAX fl (603) 226-3532 MEMBER OFTHE PRIVATE

Certified PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Companies practice Section

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the
t>'pes of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United Slates of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.

-17-
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Report CD Internal Control over Compliance

Management of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over compliance with the
t>'pes of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to

.  determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there,is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any

• deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
•  of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform

Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rowley & Associates, P.O.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 4, 2019

-18-



OocuSign Envelope 10: 514B188C-8954-485A-9E4D.A91D4BD9FF54 \
i>ew nampsnirc coalition Against uomcstic and Sexual Violence
Schedule of Findings and Question Costs
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SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDlTOR^S RESULTS

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of the New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence were prepared In accordance with GAAP.

2. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements are reponed in the Independent
Auditor's Report. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are reported in the
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No Material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a) are reported
in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as a major programs were:

Victims of Crime Act 16.575

Family Violence Prevention Service Act 93.556

8. The threshold, for distinguishing Types A and B Programs was: $750,000.

9. The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

SECTION II - FINDINGS: FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

No matters were reported.

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS: FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS

AUDIT

No matters were reported.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Pass-Through

Federal Entity Passed

CFDA Identifying Through to Federal

Program Title Number Number Subrecipienls Expenditures

U.S. Dcnartment of Ju.stice:

Direct Program - Violence Against Women Act of 2000 16.556 - 243.378

Pass-Through Programs from Slate of Nil Department of Justice:

VAWA, SASP 16.017 20I9SASP0I 5.709 5,709

VAWA, SASP 16.017 20I8SASP0I 338,025 338,025

VAWA, SAJl 16.017 20I6SAJ10! - 120

VOCA, PMC Subcontracts 16.575 20I9VOC3I 1,988,498 1.988,498

VOCA, Training 16.575 20I9VOC3I - 14,035

VOCA, SA 16.575 20I8VOC49 125,603 286,611

VOCA, CA 16.575 20I8VOC47 - 41,936

VOCA, DV 16.575 20I8VOC48 465,879 475,458

VOCA, Supplemental 16.575 20I9VOC59 252,464 272,322

VOCA, 16.575 20I8VOC31 - 192,576
VAWA, STOP 16.588 2G18W090 - 78,075

VAWA, STOP 16.588 2019W090 - 79.517

Total Pass-Through Programs 3,176,178 3,772,882

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 3,176.178 4,016,260

U.S. Denartment of Health and Human Scr\'icc.s:

Direct Program • Family Violence Prevention Ser\'ices Act 93.591 - 207,706

Direct Program • Family Violence Prevention Ser\ ices Act 93.591 - 77,569

Pass-Through Programs from State ofNH Department of HHS:

Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 102-500731 229,457 322.427

Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 155510 BOOl 868.580 888.580

Total Pass-Through Programs 1,098,037 1,21 1,007

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 1,098,037 1,496,282

Cornoration for National & Communitv Sei-\'ices:

Pass-Through from Volunteer NH!

AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program 94.006 - 219,540

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS S 4.274.215 $ 5,732.082
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Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
activity ofNew Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regidalions Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because
the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in
net assets, or cash flows of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Expenditures reported on the S.chedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, Cost
Principles for Non-profit Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are
limited as to reimbursement.

2. Pass-through entit>' identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE C ̂ SUBRECIPIENTS

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Se.xual Violence provide federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Program Title Federal CFDA # Amount Provided

Se.xual Assault Services Program . 16.017 $ 343,734

Victims of Crime Act 16.575 2,832,444

Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 229,457

Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 868.580

^4.274.21.5

NOTE D - INDIRECT COST RATE

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence has not elected to use the 10% de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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PAMELA ENGLISH

EMPLOYMENT

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord, NH

Administrative Director, 2006 • Present

•  Continued all duties of Business and Grants Manager, including all Financial Management of the
NHCADSy.

•  Assist with grant writing.

•  Administration management including maintaining insurance coverage for organization and employees
and administering employee benefits;

•  Management of information technology systems.

•  Facilities Manager for building at 4 South State Street, Concord.

Business and Grants Manager, 1995 - 2006
•  Maintain all financial records, including payroll and employee benefits.

•  Manage state and federal funding programs and provide technical assistance to subcontractors.

•  Managed conversion to new computerized Fund Accounting system.

•  Hire and manage Bookkeeper and Office Coordinator.

•  Act as Facilities Manager for building at 4 South State Street, Concord.

Administrative Assistant, 1993 ' 1995

•  Assisted two Co-Directors and a trainer with their administrative needs.

•  Responsible for coordination and management of office.

•  Maintain accurate financial records using full charge computerized bookkeeping system.

•  Insured compliance with all slate and federal reporting requirements, including 941, state UC, W-2,
1099.

Self Employed Child care provider and Nanny, Concord, NH, 1988- 1993

Law Ofilccs, Concord, NH, 1985 - 1988
Legal Secretary
•  Daniel D. Crean, Esq. and Charles H. Morang, Esq., Municipal and Business Law Practices
•  Robert K.. Mekeel, Esq. Labor, Criminal. Worker's Comp. and General Law Practice

COMPUTER EXPERIENCE AND SKILLS

•  Fund Accounting Software
Spreadsheets

Microsoft OITice Word and Excel

Outlook and Outlook Express

•  EfTective supervisory management
E.xcellent organizational skills
Detail oriented

Ability to manage multiple, simultaneous deadlines
Working knowledge of federal and stale grant compliance requirements
Working knowledge of computer management
Computerized accounting management
Experience and knowledge of New Hampshire employment law
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EDUCATION

NH Technical Institute, Concord, NH

Selected Accounting and Management Courses

Mcrritt Davis Business College, Eugene, OR
Legal Secretarial Degree II

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

2002-Present Northwopd Elementary School PTA, President for 2003/2005 school years
1990-2002 Dewey/Kimball School PTA
1983-1984 President, Merrimack County Legal Secretaries Association

REFERENCES

Available upon request.
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JENNIFER TVETER

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

Attended Specialized Bachelor's program In.Pedagogical Science, combined with Children and Family
Studies at Leiden University, the Netherlands

❖ Paralegal, multi-functional office manager at prestigious law firm in downtown Manhattan, NYC
❖ Dedicated advocate focused on children's rights, survivor empowerment and social change
<• Proficient in Microsoft office and SPSS (a statistical analysis program)

Bilingual in English and Dutch (limited knowledge of German and French)

WORK EXPERIENCE

NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence Jan. 3 2018 until Present

MCVP: Crisis & Prevention, Education & Community Outreach Coordinator August 2016 until Jan. 1 2018

Courageous Kids Network, Executive Director . March 2011 until present
Leader and spokesperson for a national coalition of young people who have been abused and are working towards
self-empowerment and social change.

Robin Hill Farm March 2015 until present
Life Skill Facilitator

Law Office of Lisa FIschel-WolovIck March 2011 - March 2015
Paralegal/ office manager for matrimonial attorney.

Law Office of Nancy S. Erickson, Paralegal January 2011 - March 2015
Part-time paralegal for family law attorney.

Strengthen our Sisters women's shelter March 2011 - April 2012
Domestic Violence Advocate.

CAB, Founder & Executive Director. May 2009 until present
(Children Against Court Appointed Child Abuse) www.CA3CACACA.BlogsDot.com
Founder and Director of youth-led organization to raise awareness about the injustices of the family court system.

American Children Underground, Biogger 2008 until present
www.Americanchildrenunderground.blogSDOt.com

Blog documenting the struggles of an American family escaping domestic abuse in the United States, Uarching for
safety, receiving asylum in Europe, returning to America 18 years later and determination to make a change.

Internship Generation R, Rotterdam, the Netherlands Jan - June 2010
Training to code interviews for large interdisciplinary, longitudinal research.

Medelanders (Citizens of the World) Summer Camp, Assistant Leader Aug 2001
Worked with refugee children, war orphans in self-empowerment summer camp.

PGB, Leiden, Home Aide, Mama's Heiper Sept 2001 - Sept 2010
Provided nanny services for seriously ill mothers and their children.

INVITED PRESENTATIONS & TESTIMONIES, Including but not limited to: |
Keynote Speaker at the Conference on the effects of Domestic Violence on Children April 10,11 2015
At the University of Ottawa

Battered Mother's Custody Conference May 2015
Collaborated with Center Judicial Excellence (article & short film presentation)
"Divorce Corp. The Untold Story - Ambassadors of Truth, Kids of Divorce Speak Out" Jan, 2014
Keynote Speaker Battered Mothers Custody Conference Washington D.C.
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. Presented with the Dutch Deputy-Ambassador, Peter Mollema, regarding the Netherlands decision to grant
asylum to our family asylum in the Netherlands. May 2013
Guest lecturer at John Jay University,

"The use of Forensic Evaluations While Determining Custody" 2013

Keynote Speaker, National Coalition Against Domestic Violence, Denver, CO

'The Impacts and Effects of Violence on Children" July 2012
Keynote Speaker, Battered Mothers Custody Conference, Albany, NY

"Abused Children to Children Advocates" Jan 6-8, 2012
Presenter, New York County Lawyers Association, New York, NY Dec 8, 2011

"Effects of Parental Alienation Syndrome (PAS) on Women and Children in Custody Cases"
Presenter, Teen Information Parenting Success (TIPS) Abuse Prevention, Derry, NH

"The Effects of Violence on Children" Nov/Dec 2011
Guest Speaker, Merrimack College, North Andover, MA Nov 16, 2011

"What It's Like to Live With An Abuser"

Testifier, Congressional Briefing: "Effects of Domestic Violence on Children" Washington, DC October 12, 2011
National Coalition Against Domestic Violence (NCADV)

Panelist, Institute on Violence, Abuse & Trauma (IVAT) Sept 11, 2011
Unveiling of the documentary "No Way Out But One"

Presenter, Institute on Violence, Abuse & Trauma (IVAT) "Living on the Run as a Child" Sept 2011

Award Presenter, Battered Mothers Custody Conference, Albany, NY Jan 2009
Presenter, Court Appointed Special Advocates (CASA), Baltimore, MD Get 2008

"When The Courts Get It Wrong"

Speaker, Into the Light, Domestic Violence Conference, Hood College, Frederick, MD Get 2008

"Detrimental Effects of Family Court Failures" and "Children as Pawns"
Invited to speak with Congressman Steny Hoyer, House Majority Leader, Washington, DC Sept / Get 2008
To discuss failings of family court nationally and solutions

Invited to speak with Congressman Keith Ellison Minnesota Get 2008

To discuss failings of family court in Minnesota and solutions

MEDIA INTERVIEWS, Including but not limited to

Documentary "No Way Out But One", Producer Garland Waller 2011

Jewish Women International, Joint interview with Holly Collins and Dr. Mo Hannah, Domestic

Violence Expert April 2011
Interview for Photo Exhibit, Center for Judicial Excellence, San Francisco, CA Get 2008

Inside Edition, TV Interview Mom and daughter in exile Get 2008

ABC, Good Morning America/20/20 Joan Martelli, Executive Producer multiple Interviews Get 2008

Mike and Juliette's Morning Show New York, NY Get 2008

Look Magazine "I've been in hiding from Dad for 14 years" May 2008
Local TV Interview in California Sept 2008
Joint Radio interview with Dr. Joyanna Silberg, Child Abuse Expert Sept 2008

HONORS & AWARDS

Courageous Kid Medal, 2008, California Protective Parents Association

The Hague International Model United Nations, 2004, President, Human Rights Committee
Model United Nations, 2000- 2004, student officer

Lion Heart Award, 2003, International School, Rijniands Lyceum, Gegstgeest, Netherlands

SPECIAL SKILLS

Proficient in statistical analysis

Public speaking &. Debating

Networking

EDUCATION & TRAINING

University Diploma, Universiteit Leiden, Netherlands

Internship training BPI coding, 2009

Gesprekstechnieken, Training course in counseling children and families, 2009

Training & certificate as an Expert Witness on Domestic Violence

References Available Upon Request
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Marie R. Linebaugh, MSW

WORK EXPERIENCE

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence Concord, NH
Program Director September 2015-Present

o Implement and direct statewide initiatives of NHCADSV and its member programs,
o Recruit and supervise six program staff, as they implement and sustain initiatives of the NHCADSV.
o Oversee training and technical assistance efTorts of the NHCADSV.
o Develop and implement evaluation tools for statewide programs and special projects,
o Provide high level management and support to the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP.)
o Secure competitive federal funding to support AVAP and developed evaluation methods to measure program
outcomes.

o Serve as liaison to theNHCADSV's 13 member programs by identifying needed resources and training to improve
direct service delivery.

o Serve on statewide committees to assist in the improvement of multi-disciplinary response to domestic violence,
sexual violence, stalking and human trafficking.

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence Concord, NH
AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program Coordinator August 2014-Sepiember 2015

o Co-manage 20-26 AmeriCorps members who provide direct service to survivors of domestic and sexual violence,
o Facilitate monthly meetings for training opportunities and member support.
o Conduct two host site visits per year per member to ensure member satisfaction and program compliance,
o Coordinate member involvement in national service events sponsored by Volunteer New Hampshire (VNH).
o Provide direct support and supervision to AmeriCorps members on an as needed basis,
o Maintain and develop relationships with host site partners by offering support on AmeriCorps protocol,
o Update handbooks, contracts and policies as it relates to programmatic operations,
o Coordinate and facilitate AVAP Partnership meetings on bi-monthly basis.

Human Ser\'ices Ccnter/McKeesport Collaborative Turtle Creek, PA
Program Associate/MSW Intern May 2013-April 2014

o Co-facilitated eight week HIV/AIDS prevention and job readiness hybrid program for 12 youth, ages 13-16.
o Integrated numerous best practice curricula to develop a comprehensive guide for eight week hybrid program,
o Co-wrote five foundation requests of amounts ranging from $6,000 to $120,000 to support youth programs

department. Three proposals were funded, securing,$276,000, and two are currently under review,
o Organized annual HIV/AIDS Walk, including raising sponsorships and managing in-kind donation requests,
o Coordinated World AIDS Day and National Women and Girls HIV/AJDS Awareness events in McICeesport.
o Updated the Center's HIV/AIDS mobile application, with interactive resources on HIV information and education.

The Stern Center Forest Hills, PA
Therapeutic Support Stajf' October 2012- August 2013
6 Provided one-on-one behavioral interventions for children in accordance with their individual treatment plans.

Jewish Family and Children's Service Pittsburgh, PA
Refugee Resettlement MStV Intern ■ October 2012- April 2013

o Assisted newly resettled refugees in school enrollments and the elderly in accessing Port Authority senior bus passes,
o Coordinated workshops on weatherization. Taught families how to weatherize their homes for the winter months,
o Assisted with the implementation of the Refugee Youth Employment Program (RYEP.)

VWCA of Hamilton Hamilton, OH
Program Assistant/Community Educator Ji,[y 2011-July 2012

o Coordinated and implemented FOCUS (teen pregnancy prevention program) in schools and local agencies,
o Conducted outreach to 16-19 year old girls in Hamilton, Montgomery, Warren and Butler Counties of Ohio,
o Updated FOCUS' social media through program website, Facebook and Twitter,
o Connected participants to resources in their respective communities as needed.
o Trained department on Microsoft Access, Drop Box, and social media techniques for program recruitment.
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Marie R. Linebaugh, MSW

WORK EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED)

YWCA NH Manchester, NH
Youih Programs Coordinator November 2010-June 20JI

o Developed and facilitated a leadership and peer educator course for ten high school students,
o Coordinated and implemented drug and alcohol based prevention curriculum for girls grades 6"', 7th and 8"*.
o Conducted education and outreach to community agencies on topics relevant to the YWCA's mission,
o Hired, scheduled, and supervised Child Care workers.
o Obtained credits for CPS (Certified Prevention Specialist) through the state of New Hampshire.

AmcriCorps VISTA Manchester, NH
Child Health Services January 2010-Jiily 2010

o Conducted a pilot study to better understand the educational needs of low-income clients,
o Coordinated and compared data collected from EPIC Medical records and school correspondence,
o Through data evaluation and qualitative interviews, identified need for literacy support for youth and adults,
o Developed a model for a pilot Family Literacy Program to be held after clinic hours.
o Proposed cost-effective and efficient model for a sustainable family literacy program that is still in operation,
o Aided social service department in providing culturally competent care. (Majority of clientele refugee/immigrant)

B.RJ.N.C. i.T.!!! Program July 2009-December 2009
o Assisted with grant research and writing, organized programming for refugee and immigrant youth and their families.

EDUCATION

University of Pittsburgh, School of Social Work Pittsburgh, PA
Master of Social Work: Community Organizing and Social Administration April 2014

Emmanuel College '^Boston, MA
B.A. English Communications & B.A. Sociology May 2009

Study Abroad: School of international Training Rabat, Morocco
Attended the Morocco: Culture and Society program. Included a one month research period. Spring 2008

GRADUATE FELLOWSHIP

Albert Schweitzer Fellowship Pittsburgh, PA
Traditional Fellow April 20li-May 2014

o Implemented yearlong project with the Prospect Park Family Center. Developed programming for 40 refugee youth,
o Served as primary mentor for 8"* and grade boys group. Conducted weekly groups,
o Coordinated and facilitated eight week sessions for middle school girls on self-esteem, self-image, healthy

relationships, cyber safety, sexual harassment prevention, and boundaries,
o Developed and implemented eight week co-ed program on healthy relationships for high school youth. Topics

included: boundaries, teen dating violence prevention, sexual harassment and violence prevention, and cyber safety,
o Developed peer support group for young mothers from Burma. Combined mothers spoke three languages in group,
o Facilitated activities with Burmese mothers on stress management, yoga, nutrition, and food safety/preparation.

Awards/Scholarship:
Men Valley Woman of Achievement: Special Project Award October 2013

o Co-recipient of the Special Project Award for implementing Project H.E.A.R.T., an eight week summer program for
adolescents in McKeesport, PA, engaging youth in peer education and community awareness projects on HlV/AlDS.
Implementing job readiness curriculum was also an integral part of Project H.E.A.R.T.

Universit>' of Pittsburgh: Merit Scholarship August 2012-April 2014
o Awarded $3,500 for each of the four semesters of the Master of Social Work graduate program.
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NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary for
Contract

Period

% Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Pamela English Administrative Director $46,458 5% $2,333
Marie Linebaugh Program Director $38,252 2% $ 933

Jennifer Tveter Prevention Coordinator $25,990 86% $22,412
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Uri A. SblbiBtm

Comoitttoaer

Uta Al Horrto
Mmtar

STATE OP New HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DiyiSIO/^ OF PUBUC HEAL TH SEE FICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD. NH 03301
OOJ-ZTI-^SOl ]-S0»^-334SEil45O1

Fai: (03-271^27 TDD Acccn: I-800-73S-2904

r.dbhuh.tev

September 1, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Cortcord. New Hampshire 03001

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence (VC# 155510), Concord, NH. for the continuation of primary prevention activities
to reduce sexual violence, by increasing the price limitation by $94,682 from $610,830 to
$705,512 end by extending the completion date from September 30, 2020 to January 31, 2021.
effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on May 2, 2018, Item 024.

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021. with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget C^ce, If needed and justified.

06-96-90-302010-3388 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS: DIVIStON OF PUBUC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND
COMMUNITY SERVICES, RAPE PREVENT & EDUCATION (RPE)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised .

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for

Prog Svc
90004008 $142,183 $0 $142,183

2020 102-500731 Contracts for

Prog Svc
90004008 $275,415 $0 $275,415

2021 102-500731 Contracts for

Prog Svc
90004008 $68,854 $87,182 $156,036

Subtotal $486,452 $87,162 $573,634

77i« Deparimtnl of Health and Human Seruicti' Mittion U to join comniunilui and fomitiee
in providing epporlunitUt for eiiuent to ocAieiM health and independente.
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.Hb ExeeDehcy. Governor Chrittopher T. Sununu
end the Horwreble Council

Pope 2 of 3

05.95.90.900160064011 HEALTH AND SOOAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN 8VS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTRACT
PREVENTAT1VE HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

State

Rscai

Year

Class /
Account

Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

.  Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 1Q2-500731
Coritracts for

Prog Svc
90016006 $86,878 $0 $88,876

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90016006 $30,000 $0 $30,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for

Prog Svc
90016006 $7,500 $7,500 $15,000

Subtotal $124,378 $7,500 $131,878

Total $610,830 $94,682 $706,612

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to add funds and exter>d the existing contract to continue to
provide primary prevention activities for the reduction of sexual violence through a systematic
plan addressing aQ levels of the socio-ecological spectrum.

The Contractor will provide sexual violence prevention training and education sessions to
New Hampshire students and college-age residents, as well as provide professional development
opportunities for teachers and law enforcement. Approximately 13,000 indrviduats will-be served
from Octoberl, 2020 to January 31, 2021.

The Contractor wiD continue to provide educational sessions on the primary prevention of
sexual violence to students of all ages. The Contractor also provides professional development
opportunities to teachers, law enforcement, and other prof^slonals to learn to train on best
practices with regards to sexual violence prevention strategies. The Contractor will also continue
to work with community-based agencies and local domestic violence crisis centers statewide on
developing and evaluating best practices and sexual violence prevention programming statewide.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures;

•  Eighty percent (80%) of primary sexual violence prevention programs will be
evaluated and analyzed.

•  One hundred percent (100%) of prevention programming will be reported to the
Department on an annual basis.

•  The work plan for the overall program evaluation wID be reviewed quarterly and one
hundred percent (100%) of deadlines will be met.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services.
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His Excsltoncy, Oovomor Christopher T. Stmunu
and the Honorabie Council

Pege 3 of 3

available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The O^rtment
Is exercising its option to renew services for four (4) months of the twenty-four (24) months
available.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request. Individuals in New Hampshire
may not have the opportunity to take part In sexual violence prevention activities, which could
potentially result in the increased incidence of sexual violence in the State.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFOA#93.136. FAIN #NUF2CE002459 and CFDA #93.991. FAIN #TBD

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

'  Respectfully 8ut)mltt^,

Lori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Sexual Violence Prevention and Education

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Sexual Violence Prevention and Education Contract
T^is 1" Amendment (o the Sexual Violence Prevention and Education contract (herelnafler referred to as
Amendmwt #1") is l>y and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
^rvlces (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or -Department") and New Hampshire Coalition Aoainst
pomestx: and Sexual Violenc©. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonproffl with a pl^ of
business at A South State Street Concord. NH 03301.

agreomont (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on Atey 02. 2018, (Item #24). the Contractor agreed to perfomn certain services based upon the terms and
cofYditions spocrfied In the Contract and In consfderation of certain sums specified; and
WHERWS. pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions. Section 3. Extension, the Contract may be amended and extended upon vwitten
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Coundl; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limltatfon or modlfv
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
(n the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
January 31,2021.

Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.6, Price Limitation, to read:

$705,512.

^3. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9, ContracUng Officer for State Agency, to read:
Nathan D. White. Director.

1.

2.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read;
603-271-9631.

5. Modify Exhibit 8-3, by repladng in its entirely with Exhibit B-3. Amendment #1 Budget Sheet
which is attached hereto and incorporated reference herein.

New Hampshire CoeUtion Against
DomesSc and Sexual Violence

RFP-2018-OPHS-0e-SeXUA-01-A01

Amendment 01

Page 1 of 3

Contractor Inltfals
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New HampsMre Depaitment of Heattti end Human Services
Sexual Vldence Prevention and Education

Al) terms end oondHlona of the Contract rwt inconaittent with this Amendment d1 rwhain in fuD force and
effecL Thb amendment shaO be effective upon the date of Oovemor and Executive Coundl approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the dale written below,

State of New Hampshira
Depanment of Health end Human Servfcas

-M4Oatel / Name

TWe'
Co/YM»

Date

New Hampshire CoaBtlon Against Domestic and Sexual
VMance

UettSc
Name: . ..

Title: '-y" ̂

£V<>Ui Ti .^7>/

N«w HtmptMro CodWan Apdnd
OomKfle tnd Sntud Vbdno*

RFP-20teOPKS-0e^EXUA41-A01

Amtndmantti

P»e«2efS

ijy\ s
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Sexual Vlo<eiKe Prevention and Education

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form substance and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

09/04/20

Date Name:

TWe: Catherine Pinds.- Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on;, (date of meeUng)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

TiUe:

N«w Hampshire Coalition Against
Oonf>aetic and Sexud ̂ oience

RFP.201 S-DPHS-OS-SEXUA-Ot -A01

Amendment 01

Pege 3 of 3
uns
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JrfTrtyA. Meyert
Coaabsioetr

Lltt M. Morris

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
I

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SERVICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH OWOl

603-27MS0I 140(^32.3)45 exL4S0l
Fti: 603-271482? TDDAccen: 1400-735.2964

www.dbbs.nb.gov

March 23. 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services
(DPHS), to enter into an agreement with New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence. Vendor #155510-6001. 4 South State Street. Concord. NH 03301, for the provision of
primary prevention activities for the reduction of sexual violence, in an amount not to exceed $610,830,
effective October 1, 2018 or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through
September 30. 2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account(s) for SFY 2019, and are anticipated to be
available in SFY 2020 and SFY 2021, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the
future operating budgets, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through
the Budget Office, without approval from Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-3388 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HNS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY
SERVICES. RAPE PREVENT & EDUCATION (RPE)

SFY Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90004008 $206,561

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90004008 $275,415

SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90004008 $68,854

Subtotal $550,830

HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY
SERVICES, MATERNAL - CHILD HEALTH

SFY Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90016006 $22,500

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90016006 $30,000

SFY 2021 .102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90016006 $7,500

Subtotal $60,000

^Total $610,830
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this agreement is to provide rape prevention and education services through a
systematic plan addressing all levels of the socio-ecological spectrum. The Contractor virili provide
program evaluation and best practices to community-based agencies and/or local crisis centers
statewide.

The Contractor and Its member programs will provide training and sexual violence prevention
education to New Hampshire students and college age residents, as well as provide professional
development for teachers and law enforcement. All activities will be aligned vrith the goals of the
Centers for Disease Contrors (CDC's) Prevention Rape Prevention and Education Program, and the
New Hampshire Sexual Violence Prevention Plan.

Sexual violence has far reaching impacts on the lives of victims, bystanders, and perpetrators.
Sexual violence, including rape. Is often preventable. Recognizing this, Congress passed the Violence
Against Women Act In 1994. This landmark legislation established the Rape Prevention and Education
Program at the CDC. The DPHS Injury Prevention Program has historically partnered with the New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence to distribute the majority of these funds to
their member programs/crisis centers located throughout the state. The Coalition does this through a
funding mechanism based on population, as well as the number of sexual violence victims served. The
Coalition Is the only centralized entity that provides oversight and technical assistance to the thirteen
(13) member programs /crisis centers In New Hampshire.

In State Fiscal Year 2016, over 900 educational sessions on the primary prevention of sexual
violence took" place with over 39.000 participants consisting of students of all ages. These sessions
were facilitated by prevention educators at the individual member programs/ crisis centers of the
Coalition. Of those sessions evaluated, there was significant change in the understanding of consent
and a willingness to act as an informed bystander. In addition, approximiately 2,200 professionals were
trained on best practice with respect to the prevention of sexual violence. These professionals include
teachers, law enforcement, and other first responders. The majority of participants fell more
competent in facilitating prevention strategies after the training. The education sessions targeted to
students and those targeted to professionals are evaluated to ensure an overall better understanding
of sexual violence prevention strategies. The reduction of sexual violence is a long term process and
difficult to measure. Interim measures, such as a decrease on the Youth Risk Behavior Sun/ey in
affirmative answers to sexual violence questions, improve annually.

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence was selected for this project
through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposal was posted on The Department of Health
and Human Services' web site from October 9. 2017 through November 9. 2017. The Department
received one (1) proposal. The proposal was reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with
program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough discussion of the strengths and
weaknesses of the proposal. The Bid Summary is attached.

As referenced in the. Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of the contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional year(s). contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, New Hampshire citizens
may not have the opportunity to take part In sexual violence prevention activities. The impact could
potentially increase the incidence of sexual violence in the Stale.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health and
Human Services. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Rape Prevention and Education
Program Grant. CFDA #93.136, FAIN #NHF2CE002431 and Preventive Health and Health Services
Block Grant. CFDA#93.758, FAIN#NB010T009141.
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His Excellency. Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

Page 3 of 3

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

^ Lisa M. Morits
Director

Approved

\lenrey Al. Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and //union Ser\jice$'Mission is to join eommunities and families
in providing opporitinilies for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Sexual Violence Prevention &

Education RFP-201&^PHS^SEXUA

RFP Name RFP Number

1.

Bidder Name
Pass/Fall

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points 2.

NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence 600 526
3.

2 0 600 0
4.

3 0 600 p 5.

Reviewer Names

Rhonda Siegd. Admin Mtml &

Child Hah. DPHS

Prevention Prog Mgr. MSG Hiih

TTSn^I«!3>eII^3mmisSSton^

Ellen Chase-Lucard, Financial

Administrator OPHS (Cost)

^ff^Jageman^manc^BepJ^
DPHS (Cost)
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Subject: Sexual VlQlcnce Preveniion and Education (RFP-20I8-DPHS-06-SEXUA)
FORM NUMBER P-37 (venioo S/8/1S}

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contraa.

AGREEMENT
The Stale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Depanmcni of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301 -3857

1.3 Contractor Name

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence

1.4 Contractor Address

4 South Slate Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Phone

Number

603-224-8893

1.6 Account Number

05-95-90-902010-33880000

05-95-90-902010-51900000

1.7 Completion Date

September 30. 2020

1.9 Contracting OfTiccr for State Agency
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq.
Director of Contracts and Procurement

1.8 Price Limitation

$610,830

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9330

Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Z-y>i _M , Scko//o
1.13 Acknowledgemer^: Stateof/l/rfh//-^»^^*3fc,''eounty of

On f'et I ^ . before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12.or satisfactorily
proven to.be the pcr-;cn whose narrw is signed in block I.I I, and acknowledged that s/hc executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

•9

[Seal!

1.13.2 Name and Title of^otaj;^r Justice of the Peace

l.14..--^talc Agency Signature

A Date

1.16 Approval by the N.IT Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By- Director, On:

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

U'yA Mogci<7,'PiVc4°r'

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

1.18 Approval by the Governor alyptxecutive C^j/incil (iflap}}licable)

®y- I \ On:

Page I of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The S«atc of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency ideniined in block I.I ("Slate"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the atuched
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3. i Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Suie of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as iridicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval Is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement ts signed by the State Agency as shown in block .
1.14 ("EfTective Date"i
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the EfTective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the Slate shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF agreement.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder. including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, ifever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement Immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACrr PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are ideniined and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be (he only and the complete
cotnpcnsaiion to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The Slate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permined by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to (he
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

fi.l ln connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliaiy
aids and services to ensure (hat persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During (he term .of this Agreement, (he Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afTirmaiive action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Slates Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States Issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms ar>d conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its onmi expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform (he Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined cfforl to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Slate
employee or official, who Is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Page 2 of 4
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer speciHed in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the Slate's representative. In (he event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting OfHcer's decision shall be final for the Slate.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions ofihe
Contractor shall constilute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule:

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Slate
may take any one, or more, or all. of the following actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying (he Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in (he
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of DeHiult is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, efTective two
(2) days affer giving the Contractor noiicc of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such lime as the State
determines (hat the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFiDENTIALITV/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in (his Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information arvJ things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited (o, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
(he State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Slate upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the Slate.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
(his Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, (he Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
derail all Services performed, and (he contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject •
matter, content, and number of copies of (he Termination
Report shall be identical to (hose of any Final Report
described in the anached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE, (n
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, ond is rteiiher on agent nor
•an employee of the Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofTicers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consctii of the Stale. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the Slate.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its olTicers end
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
Stale, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Slate, This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain end
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain In force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or propeny damage, in amounts
of not less than SI .OOO.OOOper occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property,
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forriu and endorsements approved for use in the
Slate of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the Suie ofNew
Hampshire.

Contractor Initials
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14.3 The Coniracior shall furnish to the Contracting OfTtcer
identified in block 1.9; or his or her successor, a cenif1cate<s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ceniflcate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
inco^orated herein by reference. Each cenificaieCs) of
insurarKe shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior wrinen
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

•15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 Dy signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensalion "J.
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 ̂A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit Tor Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee ofContractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisi'crts hereofafler any Event ofDe/auK shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certined mail, postage prepaid^ in a United
Slates Post Ofllce addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parlies hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Covcrrtor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State ofNew Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The svording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any'party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
(herein shall in no way be held to explain, ntodify, amplify of
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of (he
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERaBILITV. In (he event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law. the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall'
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Sexual Violence Prevention and Education

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services

they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful

access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective

date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New

Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the

Sen/ices described herein, the State Agency has the right to rhodify Service priorities,
and experidrture requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

2. Scope of Services
2^1. The Contractor shall provide primary prevention activities for the reduction of sexual

violence in alignment with the goals and dbiectives of the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention's (CDC) Rape Prevention and Education (RPE) Grant
(httos://www.cdc.QOV/violenceDfevention/rDe/lndex.html) including, but not limited to
providing technical assistance, training, and guidance to New Hampshire rape crisis
center member programs regarding program evaluation and outreach for rape

prevention education which will include, but not be limited to:

2.1.1. Bi-monthly workgroup meetings.

2.1.2. Statewide planning activities of the Sexual Violence Prevention Advisory

Council.

2.1.3. Granite State Respect Week, a statewde teen dating violence prevention
campaign.

2.2. The Contractor shall employ their Prevention Toolkit which guides rape crisis center

member program education staff through the process of developing a primary sexual

violence prevention strategy that adheres to the Principles of Effective Prevention.

The Toolkit includes, but is not limited to:

2.2.1. An overview of primary prevention strategies.

2.2.2. Guidelines for distinguishing between awareness and prevenUon activities.

2.2.3. A discussion of the Social Ecological Model and the Spectrum of Prevention (a
framework for ensuring that individual, relationship, and community level

strategies are implemented).

2.2.4. Tools for using risk and protective factors and community data to inform

prevention programs, behavior change theory, and an overview of SMART

objectives.

2.2.5. A four (4)-step activity for outlining a prevention program.

NH CoiltUon Aflslmt Sexual and Oomealic Violence Ediibit A Cooiraclof Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Sexual Violence Prevention and Education

Exhibit A

2.3. The Contractor shall attend quarterly meetings and act as Co-Chair of the Sexual

Violence Prevention Advisory Council (SVPAC) wrth the goal of advising on the
implementation and revision of the New Hampshire Sexual Violence Prevention

Plan., .

2.4. The Contractor shall subcontract with domestic violence crisis centers and

community-based agencies for the development, implementation, evaluation, and

reporting of primary sexual violence prevention programming statewide.

2.4.1.' The Contractor shall obtain at least one (1) example annually from every

sut>contractor of appropriate community mobilization efforts, policy change,

norms char>ge, and coalition building with partners and key stakeholders.

2.5. The Contractor shall subcontract with the Prevention. Innovations Research Center at

the University of New Hampshire for evaluation services.

2.6. The Contractor shall fund a full-time Prevention Coordinator position to provide

programmatic and technical assistance to subcontracted member .programs, as well

as provide oversight of RPE grant Implementation.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the Prevention Coordinator:

2.7.1. Attends the annual COO RPE grantee meeting.

2.7.2. Participates in monthly COG Rape Prevention Education related calls,
trainings, and meetings such as webinars from the National Sexual Violence

Resource Center (NSVRC) and Prevent Connect.

2.6. The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with all relevant state and federal

laws. Special attention is called to the following statutory responsibilities:

2.8.1. Child Protection Act, New Hampshire (RSA 169:0.)

2.8.2. Adutt Protective Services Law(RSA 161-F: 42-57)

2.8.3. Confidential Communications between Victims and Counselors (RSA 173-C)

2.9. The Contractor shall assist the Department with writing the federal application for

continued program funding.

2.10. The Contractor shall complete and submit a periodic needs assessment to the

Department with respect to sexual violence prevention that will include data

collection, source of data used, and target populations, all of which will be submitted

in aggregate format.

3. Publications Funded Under Contract

3.1. The Department and/or its funders shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced with Department contract funding including, but not
limited to brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines, posters, and
reports.

NH CoaKion Againsi Sexual and Domesiic Violence A Conifactof Inliialj
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Sexual Violence Prevention and Education

Exhibit A

3.2. The Contractor shall obtain Oepahment approval for all documents produced,
reproduced, or purchased under the contract including, but not limited to written,

video, audio, and electronic before printing, production, distribution, or use.

3.3. The Contractor shall credit-the Department on all materials produced under this

contract following the Instructions outlined in Exhibit C, Paragraph 13. Credits.

4. Staffing
4.1. The Contractor shall employ one (1) full-time Prevention Coordinator whose

qualifications include, but are not limited to:

4.1:1. A bachelor's degree in public health administration, public health education, or

social work; and

4.1.2. Five (5) years of experience in public health prevention coordination or five (5)
years of experience working in the sexual violence prevention field.

4.2. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing within one (1) nrwnth of hire

when a new administrator, program coordinator, or any staff person essential to

carrying out contracted services is hired to work in the program.

4.3. The Contractor shall notify the Depariment in writing if any critical.position is vacant
for more than one (1) month, of if at any time during this contract when the Vendor

does not have adequate staffing to perform all required services for'more than one
(1) month.

4.4. Before the Contractor hires new program personnel that do not meet the required
staff qualifications, the Contractor shall notify the Department in writing requesting a
waiver of the applicable staffing requirements. The Department may grant a waiver
based on the need of the program, individuals' experience, and additional training.

5.' Reporting
5.1. The Contractor shall provide quarterly progress reports as well as an annual

summary regarding progress toward performance measures to the Department Injury

Prevention Program.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall create a document of Lessons Learned to capture process
improvement opportunities.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall submit final Lessons Learned document by end of year
two (2).

5.2. The Contractor shall submit programmatic reports quarterly.regarding quality and
performance improvement. Reports shall include, but not be limited to:

5.2.1. Professional trainings held, to include number of trainings, type of training,
location of training, numl^er of attendees, and results of any evaluation
conducted.

NHCoaGiionAgaimtSexuat and Domestic Violence ExMbiiA Coniractor iniiials UrS
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Sexual Violence Prevention and Education

Exhibit A

5.2.2. Educational sessions held to include number of sessions, type of sessions

held, grades rf student audience (preschool, elementary, middle school, high

school, and college), number of attendees, location of sessions, and results of
any evaluation conducted.

5.2.3. Detailed information on any community mobilization, policy change, norms
change and coalition building applicable to sexual violence prevention.

5.2.4. An update on services and any evaluation training provided to subcontractors.

5.2.5. Written narrative on prevention strategies used, how they were Implemented,

and what risk and protective factors were addressed.

6. Performance Measures
6.1. The Contractor shall ensure that followir>g performance indicators are achieved

according to the given schedule and monitored quarterly to measure the

effectiveness of the agreement:

6.1.1. -Eighty percent (80%) of primary sexual violence prevention programs will be

evaluated and analyzed.

6.1.2. One hundred percent (100%) of prevention programming will tie reported to the

Department on an annualized basis.

6.1.3. The work plan for the overall program evaluation will be reviewed quarterly and

one hundred percent (100%) of deadlines will be met.

6.2'. The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan to the Department

for any performance measure that was not achieved within thirty (30) days of the end

of the given time period.

NH Coalition Against Sexual and Domestic Violence Exhibil A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Sexual Violence Prevention and Education

Exhibit B

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope
of Services.

2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may
jeopardize the funded contractor's current and/or future funding.

3. . This contract Is funded with funds from the:

3.1. US Department of Health and Human Sen/ices, Centers for Disease Control and

Prevention. Rape Prevention and Education Program Grant. Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.136, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)

#NUF2CE002431.

3.2. US Department of Heatth and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and

Prevention, Preventatlve Heatth and Human Services Block Grant. Catalog of

Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.758. Federal Award Identification Number

(FAiN)#NB010T009098.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in
the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line
item as listed in the budgets provided in Exhibit B-1, Exhibit B-2. arrd Exhibit B-3.

4.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20'^) working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The invoice
must tie completed, signed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate
payment. The Contractor agrees to keep detailed records of their activities related to
Department-funded programs and services.

4.3. The State shall make payment lo the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice^ subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

4.4. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract Form P-37, Block 1.7 Completion Date.

4.5. Invoices must tie emailed to: DPHScontractbillina@dhhs.nh.aov.

4.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, and in this Exhibit B.

5. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions , P-37. changes limited to
adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written
agreement of both parties and may t>e made without obtaining approval of the Governor
and Executive Council.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bwetr/Ftogftffi Manw: NH Ceelltton Against Oemesllc and Se«u»l Violence

Budgat far: Seiual Vtolance Prevention and Education

BudBM Parted: SFY2019 9 months (10/1Ha-g/30/19l

*i'."^5W9Cdntracto"r-8ha#ia.^Martch'i^ai:-£i ^its^uhded'tyy-DHHS^eentmctehami^'afeft

klnciwnetttalS'^fflFra^S
1. Total Salary/Wages i  36.412.00 36.412.00 36.412.W 36.412.00

2. Employee Benefits %  10.336.00 10.336.00 10J36.OT 10.336.00

3. Consultants

4. Equipnsent:

Rental

Repair afid Maintenance 975.00 975.00 975.00 975.00

Purchase/Deofeciation

S. Supplies:

Educalional

l.ab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office 1.113.00 1.113.00 1.113.00 1.113.00

6. Travel 2.500.00 2.500.00 2.500.00 2.500.00

7. Occupancy 1,745.00 1.745.00 1.745.00 1.745.00

6. Current Expenses

Telephone 585.00 585.00 585.00 585.00

Postage 120.00 120.00 120.00 120.00

Subscriptions 165.00 165.00 165.00 165.00

Audii and Legal 585.00 585.00 585.00 585.00

Insurance 428.00 428.00 428.00 428.00

Board Expenses

Software

10. Marlcetlng/Comnninlcatlona 534.00 534.00 534.00 534.00

11. Staff Education and Trainmo

12. Sutycontracts/Aoreements 173.563.00 173.563.00 173.563.00 173.563.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory):

. TOTAL 229.061.00 229,061.00 229,061.00 229,061.00
(redirect At A Pvrctnt of Direct o.rm
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CjrttM e-3

New Hampshire Department of Health artd Human Services

BWdtrmrejism Ww: WH Co»nt!oo Aflslnst Oemestle and 5«tust Vlotencc

Btidoat for Seiuel Vtotenct Preventloft tnd Education

Bodeat Period: SFY2020 12 mentha f7/1/1»-tf30a0)

:<-a?g3{gB5 ?g!teia3LC.ontrBc«ofjShafe:/!Match'y»rte?r* h'ygFipided;by;DHHSc6ntrect'ehgreg?r^

1. Total SalarvWyaoes $ 42,600.00 $ $ 42.600.00 42.600.00 42.600.00
2. Employee Benefits $  11.880.00 % 11.660.00 11.660.00 11.880.00
3. Consultants

4. Equipment:
i.

Rental

Repair and Matnlenance 1,300.00 1.300.00 1,300.00 1.300.00
Purehase/Deorectation

S. Supplies:

Educationat

Ub

Phafmacv

Medical

OfTice 1.465.00 1,465.00 1.465.00 1,485.00
6. Travel 2.500.00 S  2,500.00 2J0O.OO 2.SOO.OO
7. Occupancy 2.120.00 S  2.120.00 2.120.00 2,120.00
8. Cunent Expenses

Telephone 760.00 780.00 780.00 780.00
Postage 160.00 160.00 160.00 160.00
Subscriptions 220.00 220.00

Autft and Legal 780.00 780.00

220.00

780.00

220.00

780.00
Insurance 570.00 570:00 570.00 570.00
Board Ewnses

9. Software

10. MaiVelino/Cofnmunications 675.00 675.00 675.00 675.00
11. Staff Education and Training
12. SiKicontfacts/Aofeements S 240.345.00 S 240.345.00 240.345.00 240.345.00
13. Other (Specific details mandatory):

TOTAL $ 305,415.00 $ $ 305,415.00 305.415.00 305,415.00
Indirect Ae A Percent ef Dbeet 0.0%
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Budget lor Sexuel Violence Prevention and Educatten

Budget Pertod: SFY2021 3 months 17/1/2020»9/30/M201
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vTgtalsS^
ilriicre mental!:;^ efSSnartil~

1. Total Satafy/Waoes t0.6S0.0O 10.6S0.00 t0.6S0.00 10,650.00
2. Employee Benefits 2,928.00 2.928.00 2.928.0O 2.928.00

3. Consultants

4. EQutpmeni:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance 325.00 325.00 325.00 325.00

Purchase/Depredation

5. Supplies:
Educational

1.8b

Pharmacy

Medical

Office 370.00 370.00 370.00 370.00

6. Travel 626.00 626.00 626.00 626.00
7. Occupancy 530.00 530.00 530.00 530.00
6. Current Expenses

Telephone 195.00 195.00 195.00 195.00

Postage 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00

Sutisatptiohs 55.00 55.00 55.00 55.00

Audit and Legal 195.00 195.00 195.00 195.00

Insurattce 143.00 143.00 143.00 143.00

Board Ejoenses

9. Software

10. Mafltetlno/Coniniunlcatlons 169.00 169.00 169.00 169.00

11. Staff Education and Training

12. Subcontracts/Agfeements 60.128.00 60.128.00 60.128.00 60.128.00
13. Other (specific details mandaiofv):

TOTAL 76,354.00 76.354.00 76,364.00 76.354.00
Indirect A* A Percent of Otruct 0.0%
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIQNS

Contractors ObCgatlons; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all furtds received by tt>e Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, tfte Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows;

V Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If tt« Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
slate laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shell be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Departrnent, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination arKi such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Oepanment may request or require.

A. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees thai all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form ar>d that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of ihis Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behaff of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub<ontract or sub-agreement If It is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactlvo Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or In any
other document, contract or understanding, rt is expressly understood ar>d agreed by the parties
hereto, that rK> payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date'bn which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rale
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure (he quality of such service, or al a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to lf>ellgibie individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Firwil
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse Hems of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereur^er. in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

GxhiWl C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials LM
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
.  Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to.
reimburse the Department for ail f».i)ds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE, RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

S. Maintenance of Records; In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
coverunts and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
6.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidertcing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contraclor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contraclor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, artd original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department. /

0.2. Statistical Records: Slalistlcal, cnrollmenl, attendance or'visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of applicalion and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review; During the term of this Contracl end the period for retention hereunder. the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purp>oses of audh. examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records; All Information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
In connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such Information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to (he administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected vwlh the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased sen/ices hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - social Provisions Coniractor inHials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contair>ed in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason wtiatsoever. ^

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and norvallowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Flr^ancial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shell be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals arxJ objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: DisaOowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of untts'provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price iimitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties twreunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
sunrive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if; upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resutting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement;

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the Slate of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownonhlp: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, irKluding, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing senrices, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit, in connect'cn with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with ell rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of (he Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in. conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Offlce for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Uv5Ei4Ubll C - Spedal Provisions ' ConUsctorNtials,
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more employees, it will mafhtain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than SO employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
prorit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http;/rwww.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.''

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination liKJudes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title Vl of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs..

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblover Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees vrorKing on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall Inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the sworkforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor-shall insert the substance of this dause. induding this paragraph (c), in all
subccntrads over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: OHMS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for.efficierKy or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contradual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contrac.tof shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activllies, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

ExTilbll C - special FYovaions Contraclot initials
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delected functions and
responsibilities, and t^n the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identiried. the Contractor shall
-take corrective action.

OEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT; NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES; Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled *Financial Management Guidelines' and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the Slate of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL; If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department end containing a descnption of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuats by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuats hereurxJer. shall mean that
period of lime or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE I^W: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541 -A. for the purpose of Implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services. ,

EiWDii C - Special Pfovtslons Coniraciof inniala
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Exhibit C.1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as
follows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder.
ir^ding-without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under (his Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to (he
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and (he Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services. In whole or In pan. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In (he event
of a reduction, termlrtaiion. or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the
right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to
reduce, terminate, or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor
notice of such reduction, termination or modification. The Slate shall not be required to transfer funds
from any other source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions.
Account Number, or any other account, In the event ̂ nds are reduced or unavailable. . ^

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the following
language;
10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State.

30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of rwtice of early termination,
develop and submit to the Slate a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to. identifying the present ar»d future needs of clients receiving senrices under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to. any information or data requested by the Slate
related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the Slate as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but hoi limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in Its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Extension:

The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract'for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor and
Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to General Provisions Contractor Initials

CurDHHS/oti4H Page loft Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 514B188C-8954-485A.9E4D-A91D4BD9FF54

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections Si51-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, SubtiUe 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certjficatior>:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This cehificatton is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, SubUlle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the '
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-cont/actors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification sh^l be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee cert'fies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by;
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlav/ful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's.policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. ' Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace; ^
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Ntiifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employmenl under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5: Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving Bctuai notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

cufOHHs/noro Pallet 012
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include (he
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraphi.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropria'te personnel action against such an employee, up to arvJ including

termination, consistent with the requirements of'the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2,1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection wHh the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that arc not identified here.

Contractor Name:

Date Name;
Title:

Exhibll 0 - CenificBlion regarding Drug Fiie Conlraclor Initials
Workplace Requltemcnu - o —
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS i

Programs (Indicate applicable program covered);
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Trtle IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under TKIe XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Tide VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or-employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal. amerxJment. or
modification of any Federal contrad. grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contrador).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency.'a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contrad, grant, loan, or cooperative agreernent (and by specific mention sub-grantee or $ul>-
contrador), the undersigned shall compjete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its inslrudions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-L)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be induded in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (irKludir>g subcontrads, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transadion
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subjed to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contrador Name; '

Date Name; /
Title; f

itn5Exhibil E - Ccnificalion Retarding Lobbying Contractor InitJats
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in dental
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation wfll be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Heatlh and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction..

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
•primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,' 'debarred,* 'suspended.* 'ineligible,* 'lower tier covered
transaction,* 'participant,* 'person,* 'primary covered transaction,* 'principal,' 'proposal,* and
'voluntarily excluded,* as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting (his proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or volunlarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will include the
dause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion • <
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' prbirided by DHHS, without modification. In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that It is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knov^ that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
dedde the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but Is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parlies).

9. Nothing cor^tained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render In good faith the certification required by this dause. The knowledge and

ExNbIt F - Ceniftcation Regarding Oebflfrrent. Suspension ConirBClor Inriiols
Arxi Other Responsibilily Matters ^ '7t ^
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its.knowledge and belief, that it end its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or perfonning a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Slate antitrust ^
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certificalion; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or rriore public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an ex^anation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective tower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from panidpation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Cetlification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. IneKgibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Date Name:
Title:

■ Exhibit F - Certificalion RegarOing DcbafmerK. Suspenjlon Contractor Irttialj
ArxJ Other ReiponjIbRity Matters ^

cwowciiona Page2of2 Date '



DocuSign Envelope ID: 514B188C-8954-485A-9E4D-A91D4BD9FF54

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of Ihe General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1,12 of ihe General Provisions, to execute the folJowing
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any appl'icabie
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Acl of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 37d9d) which prohibits
redplehts of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, cither in employment practices or In
the delivery of services or l>enerits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

: the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
refererKe. the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits reo'pients of federal financial
assistar>ce from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or r>ationat origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistarKe from discriminatir^g on the t>asis of disability, in regard to employment ar>d the delivery of
services or berwfrts. in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683.1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on Ihe basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimir^ation on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pL 31 (U.S. Department of Justice R^ulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of Ihe laws for faith-based and community
organizations); ̂ ecutive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations:

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistlcblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 arvJ The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239; enacted January 2. 2013) Ihe Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed v^n the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibil G •
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stale administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, arid
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Date Name: /
TlUe: '

ExtiibiiG
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 105-227. Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services ere funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid-funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day end/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with ell applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Date Name:

Title:

lxJLx
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Paris 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 154.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Agoreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. • 'Health Care Ooerations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

"HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable HeaKh
Infonnalion, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individuar In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Paris 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States

. Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 EiWbit I Contftclof tnHiils
■  HeaRh Insurmce Portability Act
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I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretarv'shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services of
his/her designee.

n. 'Securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpari C, and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the Arnerican National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not othenwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the servlceis outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such' PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Eschibitt Conliaclof Iniliab
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in vioiation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall indude. but not be
limited to;

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of fe>identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disdosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Nolirication Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available ail of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disdosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
, access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disdosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assodate
agreements with Contractor's intended business assodales, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 ExhiWll Conlraclof
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disciosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)'
business days fonvard such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if fonvarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the f^HI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business-Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObllQationa of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of,any changes or limitatlon(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provideil to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Tefmlnation for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) MIscellaneoua

a- Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c- Data OwnershlD. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or aeated on behalf of Covered Entity.

1

d. Interoretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/r0i,4 E>tilt>Jl I Conlractor InltUb
Ke»nh InsvrsnM Porlabilily Ad
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Page 5 of 6 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID; 514B188C-8954-485A-9E4D-A91D4BD9FF54

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The^Slate

Signature of Authorized Representative

A  .
Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

GcaLctA-f-

Signature of Aphorized RepresenRepresentative

Lie. T

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3/2014 Evhi&lt I
Heatin Insurance Portability Act
Business AasocJaie Agrcemem

Page 6 of 6
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CERTtFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountatwiily and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and assodated Tirst-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the followir>g information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identlHer of the entity (DUNS 0)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is made.

The Contractor identified in Secbon 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The t>elow named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

1.7^ 1^
Name: "7
Title: /

Dale Name:
Title:

ExNM J - Certification Regarding irte Federal FurxJing Contractor
Accountability And Transparency Ad (FFATA) Complianee ^ ̂  ■y v"'cu<OHHs/M07i) Page! of 2 Datee?'X-f •! o
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
beiow listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: iZ V ^

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

if the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the. answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly corripensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:.

Name:

Name:

Amount;
V

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUOHHSri 10713

ExNbll J ~ CeAiricaUon Recording (he Federal Furxllr^
Accounlabitlty And Trarttparency Aa (FFATA) Complianco
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3.

A. Definitions

The rollowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or,potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information." Breach"
shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

"Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Cose Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from oron'behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
• of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is goverrted by state or
federal law or regulation. This Information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial Information
(PFl), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

"End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcomracior, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

"HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

"Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (cither failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of a
system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or

4.

5.

6.

V4. Lcsl update 2.07.2018 £x1«)l(K
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consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouiing of physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by
means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not
adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or confidential
OHMS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "Pi") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C: 19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is
linked or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's
maiden name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable
Health information at 45 C.F.R. Pans 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the
United States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R.
§160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health information" means Protected Health information that Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards dcvcloping organization that Is accredited by the American
National Standards institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Conridcntiai Information.

I. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all Its directors, olTicers, employees and agents, must not

V4. Lajt updaie 2.07.2018 Exhibit K' Conifaaof Irtitialj
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use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
oflhc Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena,
etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or
object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6; The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applicatioris, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the intemet. ■

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks or
portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure.

SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential
Data.

6. Ground Mai) Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified
ground mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

V4.L»siupdale 2.07.2016 BxNbil K Contractor Ir^Uals.
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7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will
be transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-dclclion cycle (i.e. Confidcnlia! Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

1 1. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of inforrnation.

m. RETENTION AJVD DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such lime, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
Stales. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to deiecfpotential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Dcpatlmcnt confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified in section iV. A.2

UrsV4. List update 2.07.20ifl Exnibil K Contractor Iniiiatj
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5. The Contractor agrees ConfidenliahOata stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
cutTcntly>supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the
hosting infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanilization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev I, Guidelines for
Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this-
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

I. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
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confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media
used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those
for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
Slate of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as pan of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department sysiem(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may .
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an altemaic time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the £>cpartmenl may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.
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10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New
Hampshire or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stales
unless prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make elTorts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent
future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from the breach,
including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and costs
associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less

■ than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but
not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy
Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts
160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health information
and as applicable under Stale law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the Slate of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at hitps://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two (2) hours of the time
that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a confidential information

breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any
Slate of New Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform
their o^tcial duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
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implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from toss, thef) or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, Pl,orPFI
are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being -
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive
such information.

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of (he
circumstances involved.

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsile inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of In accordance with (his Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Slate's Privacy OfTicer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

Tlie Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
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accordance with the agency's documcnied incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents; -

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

- 4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notificalioh is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, liming, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact program and policy:

(Insert OfTice or Program Name)
(Insert Title)

DHHS-Coniracts@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:
DHHSInformationSecurilyOfricc@dhhs.nh.gqv

C. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfTicer@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSInformalionSecurilyOITicc@dhhs.nh.gov

E. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformationSecuriiyOfTicc@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Officcr@dhhs.nh,gov
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